
 

  

 

 Contacting the Council: Telephone: 01782 717717 . 
Email: customerservices@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk.  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk 

Castle House 
Barracks Road 
Newcastle-under-Lyme 
Staffordshire 

ST5 1BL 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Committee 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

OPEN AGENDA 

 
1 APOLOGIES    

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    

 To receive Declarations of Interest from Members on items included on the agenda. 
 

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)   (Pages 3 - 6) 

 To consider the minutes of the previous meeting(s). 
 

4 APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - LAND TO EAST 
OF WOODSIDE, BALDWIN'S GATE.  JONES HOMES (NORTH 
WEST) LIMITED AND RENEW LAND. 22/01105/FUL   

(Pages 7 - 26) 

5 APPLICATION FOR MINOR DEVELOPMENT - LAND AND 
GARAGES, BRIERYHURST ROAD, KIDSGROVE. MR SIMON 
JONES. 24/00915/FUL   

(Pages 27 - 36) 

6 LAND AT DODDLESPOOL, BETLEY. 17/00186/207C2   (Pages 37 - 38) 

7 PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISIT DATES FOR 2025/26   (Pages 39 - 40) 

8 URGENT BUSINESS    

 To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B(4) of the 
Local Government Act, 1972 
 

9 DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION    

 To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item(s) because it is likely that there will be a disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1,2 and 3 in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 

 

Date of meeting 
 

Tuesday, 20th May, 2025 

Time 
 

7.00 pm 

Venue 
 

Queen Elizabeth II & Astley Rooms - Castle House, 
Barracks Road, Newcastle, Staffs. ST5 1BL 

Contact Geoff Durham 742222 

 

Public Document Pack



 

  

Members: Councillors Northcott (Chair), Crisp (Vice-Chair), Beeston, Burnett-Faulkner, 
Bryan, Fear, Holland, Hutchison, Brown, Gorton, J Williams and G Williams 
 

 
Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of  the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting. 

 
Meeting Quorums: Where the total membership of a committee is 12 Members or less, the quorum will be 
3 members….Where the total membership is more than 12 Members, the quorum will be one quarter of 
the total membership. 

 
SUBSTITUTE MEMBER SCHEME (Section B5 – Rule 2 of Constitution) 

 
 The Constitution provides for the appointment of Substitute members to attend Committees.  The 

named Substitutes for this meeting are listed below:-  
   

Substitute Members: Sweeney 
S Tagg (Leader) 
Heesom 
Johnson 
J Tagg 
S Jones 

Whieldon 
Fox-Hewitt 
D Jones 
Edginton-Plunkett 
Grocott 
Dymond 

 
 If you are unable to attend this meeting and wish to appoint a Substitute to attend on your 

place you need to identify a Substitute member from the list above who is able to attend on 
your behalf 
 
Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items. 
 
NOTE: IF THE FIRE ALARM SOUNDS, PLEASE LEAVE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY 
THROUGH THE FIRE EXIT DOORS. 
 
ON EXITING THE BUILDING, PLEASE ASSEMBLE AT THE FRONT OF THE BUILDING BY THE 
STATUE OF QUEEN VICTORIA. DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL ADVISED TO DO SO. 



  
Planning Committee - 29/04/25 

  
1 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 29th April, 2025 
Time of Commencement: 7.00 pm 

 
View the agenda here 

 
Watch the meeting here 

 
 
Present: Councillor Paul Northcott (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Crisp 

Beeston 
Fear 
 

Holland 
Hutchison 
Brown 
 

Gorton 
 

 
Apologies: Councillor(s) Burnett-Faulkner, J Williams and G Williams 
 
Substitutes: Councillor Stephen Sweeney (In place of Councillor Gillian 

Burnett -Faulkner) 
Councillor Joan Whieldon 
Councillor Dave Jones (In place of Councillor Gillian Williams) 
Councillor Joel Edgington-Plunkett (In place of Councillor John 
Williams) 
 

 
Officers: Geoff Durham Civic & Member Support Officer 
 Craig Jordan Service Director - Planning 
 Rachel Killeen Development Management 

Manager 
 
Also in attendance:   
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest stated. 
 

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 April, 2024 be 

agreed as a correct record. 
 

3. APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - FORMER MIDWAY CAR PARK, 
THE MIDWAY, NEWCASTLE.  CAPITAL & CENTRIC. 24/00678/FUL  
 
Resolved: That the application be permitted subject to the undermentioned 

conditions: 
 

(i) Standard time limit for commencement of development 
(ii) Approved plans 
(iii) Off-site highway improvements to The Midway and Lower 

Street 
(iv) Details of the internal access ramp  
(v) Cycle parking facilities 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

https://moderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=119&MId=4397&Ver=4
https://youtu.be/9f7E2dtM4n4


  
Planning Committee - 29/04/25 

  
2 

(vi) Details of servicing  
(vii) Construction environmental management plan 
(viii) Land contamination 
(ix) Sustainable heating 
(x) Noise attenuation scheme 
(xi) Lighting 
(xii) Landscaping scheme 
(xiii) Detailed drainage design 
(xiv) Material samples 
(xv) Construction hours 

 
Watch the debate here 
 

4. APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - LAND AT MERRIAL STREET, 
NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME. MCCARTHY STONE. 24/00792/FUL  
 
Resolved: That the application be permitted subject to the undermentioned 

conditions: 
 

(i) Standard time limit for commencement of development 
(ii) Approved plans 
(iii) Off-site highway improvements 
(iv) Hard surfaces to be sustainably drained, surfaced in a bound 

material, lit and marked out 
(v) Submission of a Traffic Management Plan 
(vi) Provision of cycle parking facilities 
(vii) Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(viii) Residential Travel Plan 
(ix) Installation of a Real Time Passenger Information screen 
(x) Tree protection 
(xi) Landscaping scheme 
(xii) Detailed drainage design 
(xiii) Material samples 
(xiv) Boundary treatments 
(xv) Contaminated land 
(xvi) Noise attenuation scheme 

(xvii) Limit on external noise levels produced by fixed external 
plant 

 
Watch the debate here 
 

5. APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - 5-7 YORK PLACE, NEWCASTLE-
UNDER-LYME. CAPITAL & CENTRIC. 24/00795/FUL  
 
Resolved: That the application be permitted, subject to the undermentioned 

conditions: 
 

(i) Standard time limit for commencement of development 
(ii) Approved plans 
(iii) Street lighting 
(iv) Scheme of highway works adjacent to Fogg Street West 
(v) Traffic management scheme 
(vi) Delivery and Servicing Management Plan 
(vii) Submission of a tree protection plan  

Page 4

https://youtu.be/9f7E2dtM4n4?t=143
https://youtu.be/9f7E2dtM4n4?t=1614


  
Planning Committee - 29/04/25 

  
3 

(viii) Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(ix) Details of sustainable heating 
(x) Scheme for treatment of fumes and odours 
(xi) Remedial measures for contaminated land 
(xii) Construction noise specification 
(xiii) Limit on external noise levels produced by fixed external 

plant 
(xiv) Ventilation 
(xv) Internal noise specification for new commercial units 
(xvi) Light trespass treatment 
(xvii) Detailed drainage design 
(xviii) Material samples 
(xix) Provision of security measures 
(xx) Waste collection arrangements 

 
Watch the debate here 
 

6. APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - FORMER CIVIC OFFICES, 
MERRIAL STREET, NEWCASTLE. CAPITAL & CENTRIC. 24/00840/FUL  
 
Resolved: (A)  That, subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 

obligation by 6 June 2025 to secure a financial contribution of 
£10,000 towards the amendment of the Traffic Regulation 
Order on Corporation Street,  

 
  the application be permitted, subject to the 

undermentioned conditions: 
 

(xvi) Standard time limit for commencement of 
development 

(xvii) Approved plans 
(xviii) Off-site highway works 
(xix) Cycle parking 
(xx) Submission of a Traffic Management Plan 
(xxi) Reinstatement of redundant vehicle access 
(xxii) Servicing Management Plan 
(xxiii) Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(xxiv) Travel Plan 
(xxv) Noise attenuation scheme 
(xxvi) Contaminated land 
(xxvii) Lighting 
(xxviii) Landscaping scheme 
(xxix) Detailed drainage design 
(xxx) Material samples 
(xxxi) Boundary treatments 
(xxxii) Construction hours  

 
(B)  That, should the Section 106 obligation referred to in (A) 

above not be secured within the above period, then the Head 
of Planning be given delegated authority to refuse the 
application on the grounds that without such matters being 
secured, the development would fail to be acceptable in 
planning terms; or, if he considers it appropriate, to extend the 
period of time within which the obligations can be secured. 

 

Page 5

https://youtu.be/9f7E2dtM4n4?t=2644


  
Planning Committee - 29/04/25 

  
4 

Watch the debate here 
 

7. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no Urgent Business. 
 

8. DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION  
 
There was no confidential business. 
 
 

 
Councillor Paul Northcott 

Chair 
 
 

Meeting concluded at 8.29 pm 
 

Page 6

https://youtu.be/9f7E2dtM4n4?t=4139


  

  

LAND TO EAST OF WOODSIDE, BALDWIN’S GATE     
JONES HOMES (NORTH WEST) LIMITED AND RENEW LAND   22/01105/FUL 
 
 

The application is for full planning permission for residential development for 40 dwellings with 
associated landscaping, car parking, drainage and other necessary supporting infrastructure.  
 
The site comprises an area of agricultural land that is situated beyond, but adjacent to the village 
envelope of Baldwin’s Gate. The site is situated within the open countryside and an Area of 
Landscape Restoration as indicated on the Local Development Framework Proposals Map.  
 
The 13-week period for the determination of this application expired on 7th June 2023 but an 
extension of time has been agreed to 23 May 2025. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

(A) Subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 obligation by 1 July 2025 to secure 
the following: 

 

 The provision of 25% on-site affordable housing 

 A contribution of £223,160.00 towards off-site Public Open Space 

 A contribution of £303,072.00 for both primary and secondary school places 

 A contribution of £35,863 towards local health infrastructure  
 
Permit, subject to conditions relating to the following matters: - 
 

1. Time limit 
2. Approved plans 
3. Materials 
4. Boundary treatments 
5. Provision of visibility splays 
6. Provision of parking areas 
7. Completion of access to each individual plot 
8. Details of surfacing and surface water drainage for drives, parking and turning areas 
9. Retention of garages for parking 
10. Secure cycle parking 
11. Construction Environmental Management Plan 
12. Detailed surface water drainage design 
13. Noise attenuation scheme 
14. Contaminated land 
15. Tree protection 
16. Level changes within RPAs of retained trees 
17. Travel Plan 
18. Waste collection and storage arrangements 
19. External lighting 
20. Ecological mitigation 

 
(B) Should the Section 106 obligations referred to in (A) above not be secured within the 

above period, then the Head of Planning be given delegated authority to refuse the 
application on the grounds that without such matters being secured, the development 
would fail to be acceptable in planning terms and would not achieve sustainable 
development outcomes; or, if he considers it appropriate, to extend the period of time 
within which the obligations can be secured. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 
 
While there would be some local impact on the character and appearance of the area and some loss 
of best and most versatile agricultural land, the residential development of the site would make a 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



  

  

significant contribution to the Council’s housing supply and would provide affordable housing within 
the rural area.  
 
It is considered therefore that the adverse impacts do not significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits of the proposal and accordingly, planning permission should be granted provided the 
required contributions are obtained to address infrastructure requirements and appropriate conditions 
are imposed, as recommended. 
 
Statement as to how the Local Planning Authority has worked in a positive and proactive 
manner in dealing with the planning application   

Additional information has been sought and provided and the scheme is now considered to be a 
sustainable form of development that complies with the provisions of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
Key Issues  
 
The application is for full planning permission for residential development for 40 dwellings with 
associated landscaping, car parking, drainage and other necessary supporting infrastructure. 
 
The site comprises a parcel of greenfield land, currently used for grazing horses, that sits adjacent to 
the junction of Woodside with the A53. The site lies within the open countryside and an Area of 
Landscape Restoration as indicated on the Local Development Framework Proposals Map. It is 
located outside of, but immediately adjacent to, the village settlement boundary for Baldwin’s Gate.   
 
The key planning matters in the determination of the application are: 
 

 The principle of residential development in this location  

 Design of the development and impact on character and appearance 

 Highway safety  

 Agricultural land 

 Trees and hedgerows 

 Ecology and biodiversity 

 Residential amenity 

 Flood risk and drainage 

 Affordable housing 

 Planning obligations  

 Planning balance 
 
The principle of residential development in this location 
 
Policy SP1 of the CSS states that new development will be prioritised in favour of previously 
developed land where it can support sustainable patterns of development and provides access to 
services and service centres by foot, public transport and cycling. The CSS goes on to state that 
sustainable transformation can only be achieved if a brownfield site offers the best overall sustainable 
solution and its development will work to promote key spatial considerations. Priority will be given to 
developing sites which are well located in relation to existing neighbourhoods, employment, services 
and infrastructure and also taking into account how the site connects to and impacts positively on the 
growth of the locality.  
 
CSS Policy ASP6 states that in the Rural Area there will be a maximum of 900 net additional 
dwellings of high design quality primarily located on sustainable brownfield land within the village 
envelopes of the key Rural Service Centres, namely Loggerheads, Madeley and the villages of 
Audley Parish, to meet identified local requirements, in particular, the need for affordable housing. 
 
Policy HG1 of the CHCMAW Neighbourhood Plan states that new housing development will be 
supported in sustainable locations. These are;  
 
• Within the village envelope of Baldwin’s Gate  

Page 8



  

  

• As a replacement dwelling, or limited infill housing or within a built frontage of existing 
dwellings; or  

• In isolated locations in the countryside only where circumstances set out in paragraph 79 of 
the NPPF apply.  

 
It also goes on to state that to be in a sustainable location, development must;  
 
• Be supported by adequate infrastructure, or provide necessary infrastructure improvements 

as part of the development  
• Not involve the loss of best and most versatile agricultural land;  
• Avoid encroaching onto or impacting on sensitive landscape and habitats;  
• Not involve the loss of any important community facility 
 
Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. For decision-taking this means approving development proposals that 
accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay; or where there are no relevant 
development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for determining the application are 
out-of-date, granting permission unless: 
 
i. the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 

when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.  
          (Para 11(d)) 
 
The Council cannot currently demonstrate an up-to-date housing supply.  
 
Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states that in situations where the presumption (at paragraph 11d) applies 
to applications involving the provision of housing, the adverse impact of allowing development that 
conflicts with the neighbourhood plan is likely to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
provided the following apply: 
 
a) the neighbourhood plan became part of the development plan five years or less before the 

date on which the decision is made; and 
b) the neighbourhood plan contains policies and allocations to meet its identified housing 

requirement (see paragraphs 67-68). 
 
The CHCMWA Neighbourhood Plan was made on the 21st January 2020 and so the plan is less than 
five years old. However, the Plan does not contain policies and allocations to meet its identified 
housing requirement. As a result, it does not comply with the relevant measures outlined within 
Paragraph 14 and so it cannot be concluded that the adverse impact of allowing development that 
conflicts with the neighbourhood plan is, in itself, likely to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits. 
 
CSS Policies SP1 and ASP6, and Local Plan Policy H1 are concerned with meeting housing 
requirements, and Inspectors in a number of previous appeal decisions, have found that these 
policies do not reflect an up-to-date assessment of housing needs, and as such are out of date in 
respect of detailed housing requirements by virtue of the evidence base upon which they are based.  
 
In Paul Newman New Homes Ltd v SSHCLG & Aylesbury Vale DC [2019] EWHC 2367 (Admin) the 
judgement looks at how decision makers should assess whether “the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out-of-date”. It states that the first step is to identify the 
“basket of policies from the development plan which constitute those most important for determining 
the application”. The second task is to “decide whether that basket, viewed overall, is out of date”. 
The basket of policies can be out of date for reasons set out in the NPPF to do with housing supply 
and delivery, but also if (as a matter of planning judgement) the basket of policies has been overtaken 
by things that have happened since the plan was adopted, either on the ground or through a change 
in national policy, or for some other reason. 
 

Page 9



  

  

The basket of policies from the development plan most important for determining this application are 
considered to be LP Policy H1, CSS Policies SP1 and ASP6 and Policy HG1 of the NP. As stated 
above, it has been accepted that the LP and CSS policies are out of date. The NP was prepared 
based upon the requirements of the now out of date position set out within Policies H1 and ASP6. 
This change in the local planning context has a bearing on the weight to be applied to the 
Neighbourhood Plan policies and therefore it is considered reasonable to conclude that the ‘basket of 
policies’ overall, is out of date.  
 
It is considered that the test in paragraph 11(d) has to be applied to this application given the lack of a 
5 year housing land supply and the lack of up-to-date policies in relation to the provision of housing. 
Therefore, the tilted balance outlined within Paragraph 11(d) of the framework is engaged and an 
assessment of whether any adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the polices of the Framework taken as a 
whole is required.  
 
In sustainability terms, although the site is outside the village envelope of Baldwins Gate, it is 
considered that the village represents a sustainable location for new residential development. In 
allowing an appeal in July 2023 for 200 dwellings at Baldwin’s Gate Farm, opposite the application 
site, the Inspector noted that “the Village of Baldwins Gate contains a range of facilities including a 
Primary School, petrol filling station, shop, village hall, doctors surgery and a public house. As such 
there is an acceptable level of services available for meeting the majority of day-to-day needs”.  
 
It is the case that the occupiers of the proposed dwellings would be able to access certain services 
and facilities within walking distance and would also have a choice of modes of transport. Top-up 
shopping for example, would be obtainable from within the village and accessible from the application 
site by foot or cycle.  
 
Baldwin’s Gate is served by a bus service linking the towns of Newcastle, Hanley, Market Drayton 
and Shrewsbury and there are bus stops within walking distance of the application site. While it is 
acknowledged that the bus service does not operate in the evenings or on Sundays, it is considered 
that the bus service would provide an alternative for those without access to a car for certain trips.  
 
In allowing the Baldwin’s Gate Farm appeal, the Inspector acknowledged that the scheme would 
undoubtedly result in some additional private vehicle trips for employment, larger weekly shopping 
trips and leisure activities because the bus services would not be able to meet every individual’s 
particular needs. However, he stated that the existing level of bus service would provide a genuine 
choice for future occupiers, highlighting that the Framework does not require public transport options 
to be as convenient as private cars, but to offer a genuine choice as well as maximising sustainable 
transport solutions.  
 
These points undoubtedly weigh in favour of a conclusion that in terms of access to facilities and a 
choice of mode of transport, the site can be described as being in a sustainable location in 
accordance with paragraph 11d of the Framework.  
 
The consideration of whether any adverse impacts exist that would outweigh the benefits of the 
proposed scheme shall be considered later in this report. 
 
Design of the development and impact on character and appearance 
 
Paragraph 131 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that the creation of high quality, 
beautiful and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development 
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better 
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities. 
 
Paragraph 135 of the framework lists 6 criteria, a) – f) with which planning policies and decisions 
should accord and details, amongst other things, will function well and add to the overall quality of the 
area; be visually attractive and sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding 
built environment and landscape setting while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation 
or change. 
 

Page 10



  

  

CSS Policy CSP1 states that new development should be well designed to respect the character, 
identity and context of Newcastle and Stoke-on-Trent’s unique townscape and landscape and in 
particular, the built heritage, its historic environment, its rural setting and the settlement pattern 
created by the hierarchy of centres. It states that new development should protect important and 
longer distance views of historic landmarks and rural vistas and contribute positively to an area’s 
identity and heritage (both natural and built) in terms of scale, density, layout, use of appropriate 
vernacular materials for buildings and surfaces and access. This policy is considered to be consistent 
with the NPPF. 
 
Policy NE1 of the CHCMAW Neighbourhood Plan states that new development will be supported that 
complements the landscape setting and character of the area, preserves or enhances and does not 
cause significant harm or degradation to the intrinsic rural character and ecological and environmental 
features of the area. Policy DC2 details a number of criteria that new development should meet if it is 
to be supported. This includes, amongst other things, that the development reflects local character, 
maintains and enhances the character and appearance of the landscape and responds sensitively to 
local topography. 
 
RE5 of the Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Urban Design Guidance SPD (2010) states 
that new development in the rural area should amongst other things respond to the typical forms of 
buildings in the village or locality and that new buildings should respond to the materials, details and 
colours that may be distinctive to a locality.   
 
R12 of that same document states that residential development should be designed to contribute 
towards improving the character and quality of the area. Proposals will be required to demonstrate the 
appropriateness of their approach in each case. Development in or on the edge of existing 
settlements should respond to the established urban or suburban character where this exists already 
and has a definite value. Where there is no established urban or suburban character, new 
development should demonstrate that it is creating a new urban character that is appropriate to the 
area. R13 states that the assessment of an appropriate site density must be design-led and should 
consider massing, height and bulk as well as density. R14 states that developments must provide an 
appropriate balance of variety and consistency. 
 
LNP Policy HG2 requires a balanced mix of dwelling types to meet requirements identified in the 
latest assessment of local housing needs. This includes dwellings suitable for those wishing to 
downsize, young families and first-time buyers and specialist accommodation suitable for the elderly, 
vulnerable or disabled persons. The proportions of different dwelling types and sizes must be based 
on evidence of local housing need and this should be demonstrated as part of any planning 
application.  
 
The site is designated as being within an Area of Landscape Restoration and Policy N21 of the Local 
Plan states that within such areas, the Council will support, subject to other plan policies, proposals 
that will help to restore the character and improve the quality of the landscape.  
 
The application site comprises 2.46 hectares of grazing land bounded by the existing fringe of 
Baldwin’s Gate to the north-east and the ribbon of development along Sandy Lane to the south. There 
is an established area of woodland to the north-east. The site is bounded to the north and east by a 
hedgerow, with a combination of hedgerow, tree planting and fencing along the remaining boundaries.  
 
Access to the site would be taken from Sandy Lane with pedestrian access also provided to the north 
of the site to join the existing footway adjacent to the A53 into the village.  
 
The density of the development would be 16.3 dwellings per hectare. The layout of the scheme has 
been developed to provide dwellings with active frontages onto both Sandy Lane and the A53. The 
dwellings fronting onto Sandy Lane would be set back from the existing site boundary with the 
provision of a grassed area of amenity space and private drives sitting forward of the proposed 
dwellings. The separation distances between the dwellings in this part of the site would also be more 
generous than elsewhere which would help to provide an open, lower density appearance to assist in 
the transition from open countryside to the edge of village setting. Higher densities would be provided 
along the main street within mews developments. 
 

Page 11



  

  

The proposed housing mix would comprise 3, 4 and 5-bed dwellings with a mix of townhouses, semi-
detached and detached homes. The dwellings would be predominantly 2-storeys in height with some 
2.5 storey dwellings to provide feature buildings at key nodes within the layout. Given the variety of 
dwelling size, density and style currently in the village, it is considered that the layout proposed would 
respect local character. 
 
The designs of the house types proposed would include projecting gable detailing, porches and 
canopies and attractive stone detailing surrounding windows and doors. Full and partial render is also 
proposed in whites and creams with bricks to match the local bricks using a mix of red and brindle 
multi’s with blue/red engineering brick detailing in terms of banded courses and quoins. 
 
Boundary treatments dividing private gardens would consist of 1.8m high timber boarded fencing. 
House types that have a side garden adjacent to the main estate road would be bounded by a 2.2m 
high brick wall with stone coping and pier caps. Other boundary treatments include estate railings and 
post and timber fencing where this would surround visually prominent areas of open space. All of the 
boundary treatments proposed are considered to be appropriate for their location within the site and 
can be secured by condition.  
 
A Landscape and Visual Appraisal (LVA) has been submitted with the application. The LVA indicates 
that the site is already influenced by the built edge of Baldwin’s Gate but is of value in terms of the 
openness it provides to the south-west of the village. It states that the site may be considered to be 
tolerant to change subject to the retention of important landscape features. The LVA goes on to state 
that those that will receive the greatest impacts will be those using the Public Rights of Way network 
near the site or on higher ground, with some impact on the private residencies that immediately 
surround the site.  
 
It is accepted that the development would clearly have an impact on the character of the site and its 
immediate locality through the introduction of new built form into an area of undeveloped land that is 
sited at the edge of Baldwin’s Gate. However, the development would be sited against a backdrop of 
existing residential development to both the north, east and south of the application site which would 
assist in ensuring that the scheme would not appear as an alien or incongruous addition to the wider 
landscape. In addition, the presence of the A53 and Sandy Lane on the boundaries of the site provide 
a natural barrier to the edge of built development along this area of the village and so assists the 
development in appearing as a natural extension of the existing village rather than an intrusion into 
wide open agricultural landscapes.  
 
Given the provision of more spacious plots along the frontage and subject to the completion of an 
appropriate landscaping scheme, which can be secured by a condition, it is considered that over time 
the development would assimilate well with the wider landscape and so it is not considered that the 
development would have such an adverse impact on the character or quality of either the village or 
the wider landscape to justify a refusal.     
 
The layout and density of the proposed scheme and the proposed house types reflect local character 
and it is considered that the proposal would be acceptable in terms of its design and impact on the 
form and character of the area. 
 
Highway Safety 
 
NPPF Paragraph 114 notes that in assessing sites that may be allocated for development in plans, or 
specific applications for development, it should be ensured that: 
 

a) appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be – or have been – 
taken up, given the type of development and its location; 

b) safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users; 
c) the design of streets, parking areas, other transport elements and the content of associated 

standards reflects current national guidance, including the National Design Guide and the 
National Model Design Code; and  

d) any significant impacts from the development on the transport network (in terms of capacity 
and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost effectively mitigated to an acceptable 
degree. 

Page 12



  

  

 
Paragraph 115 advises that development should only be prevented or refused on highway grounds if 
there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the 
road network would be severe. 
 
CSS Policy SP3 addresses the need to secure more choice of, and create better access to, 
sustainable modes of transport whilst discouraging less sustainable modes. CSP1 expects new 
development to be accessible to all users and to be safe, uncluttered, varied, and attractive. 
 
NP Policy DC3 expects the form and layout of development to provide ease of movement for 
pedestrians and cyclists, cater for a people with a range of mobility requirements and avoid severe 
adverse impacts on the capacity of the highway network. 
 
Vehicular access to the site would be via a new residential standard access road connection direct to 
Woodside, to the site’s western frontage. Woodside is an unlit classified rural road subject to a 60mph 
speed limit with no footways. The primary footway access to/from the site would be provided by a 
dedicated internal footpath link connecting to the A53 and directly linking the site to the village. 
 
A Transport Assessment (TA) and Technical Note that accompany the application state that the layout 
and position of the proposed access to Woodside can deliver appropriate visibility splays and forward 
sightlines for approaching traffic speeds on Woodside. The scheme would not result in a material 
impact on future operation of the immediate local highway network, with key immediate junctions and 
sections of the A53 corridor capable of accommodating future development traffic volumes without 
operational concerns. The location of the site offers practical opportunities to encourage the use of 
alternative travel modes to the private car for some ‘everyday’ journeys. 
 
The Highway Authority has no objections to the scheme subject to the imposition of conditions. They 
comment that it has been demonstrated that the proposed vehicular access and footway works can 
appropriately tie into the committed roundabout scheme for the Baldwin’s Gate Farm development. 
They are satisfied that the road layout accords with technical standards and that adequate levels of 
parking have been provided. Secure and weatherproof cycle parking is also proposed for each plot 
without a garage to encourage sustainable modes of travel. 
 
Overall, it is considered that a safe and suitable access to the site for all users would be achieved and 
that the proposals accord with development plan policy and the guidance set out within the NPPF. 
 
Agricultural Land Quality 
 
Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the 
countryside, and the wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the 
economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and 
woodland. 
 
Policy HG1 of the CHCMAW Neighbourhood Plan states that to be in a sustainable location, 
development must, amongst other things, not involve the loss of best and most versatile agricultural 
land.  
 
Best and most versatile agricultural land (BMVAL) is defined as that which lies within Grades 1, 2 and 
3a. An Agricultural Land Classification Report that accompanies the application identifies that 0.54 
hectares (22%) of the site would represent Grade 3a land. The remaining land comprises either Grade 
3b land or woodland.  
 
The BMVAL consists of two isolated areas of the site - one to the west adjacent to Sandy Lane and a 
smaller area to the south. The Report identifies that in practical agricultural terms, the land could not 
be farmed separately and so the entire unit would have to be farmed as 3b land. While this is 
acknowledged that the loss of BMVAL is a material consideration which weighs against the proposal.  
 
Trees and Hedgerows 
 

Page 13



  

  

CSS Policy CSP4 seeks to protect, maintain and enhance the quality and quantity of the area’s natural 
assets. 
 
NLP Policy N12 seeks to resist development that would involve the removal of any visually significant 
tree, shrub or hedge, whether mature or not, unless the need for the development is sufficient to 
warrant the tree loss and the loss cannot be avoided by appropriate siting or design. Where, 
exceptionally, permission can be given and trees are to be lost through development, replacement 
planting will be required on an appropriate scale and in accordance with a landscaping scheme. 
 
The application site is bounded by mature hedgerows to the northern boundary adjacent to the A53 
and on the western boundary adjacent to Sandy Lane. There is also currently a hedgerow that bisects 
two of the paddock areas and trees sporadically on boundaries across the site. There is also a heavily 
wooded area in the far eastern corner of the site.  
 
A small number of trees (7 Category B trees and 1 Category C tree) would be removed to facilitate the 
development, but the majority would be retained. It is proposed to remove 83m of hedgerow from the 
Sandy Lane frontage in order to provide the requisite visibility splays for the proposed access. Under 
normal circumstances the applicant would be required to replant a new, native hedgerow rear of the 
visibility lines to compensate for this loss. However, on this occasion, there is an easement within the 
site that restricts any development, including planting, within a 3m buffer either side of below ground 
infrastructure.  
 
To compensate for tree and hedgerow loss on the site, a landscaping scheme has been proposed 
which includes the planting of 60 new trees across the site in addition to areas of new hedgerow, 
ornamental shrub planting, wildflower seed planting, and aquatic planting. While it would not be 
possible to plant a replacement hedge to connect to the remaining boundary hedge along Sandy Lane, 
a length of hedgerow would be planted along the private driveway behind the extent of the easement.  
 
Green spaces would be incorporated into the development, namely a gateway green onto Woodside 
and the A53 and an area which incorporates the main SuDs detention pond which will be designed 
with naturalistic contours, rolling banks and retained water to create a wetland reflective of the 
adjacent pond at Heron’s Pool Drive. 
 
The Council’s Landscape Development Team has no objections to the scheme and subject to the 
imposition of appropriately worded conditions, the proposals are considered to accord with 
development plan policy and the guidance set out within the NPPF.   
 
Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decision should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by:  
 

a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value and 
soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the 
development plan); 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits from 
natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and other benefits of the 
best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland; 

c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to it where 
appropriate;  

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing 
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures;  

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk 
from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution 
or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help to improve local 
environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into account relevant 
information such as river basin management plans; and  

f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable land, 
where appropriate. 

 

Page 14



  

  

Paragraph 193 of the Framework states that when determining planning applications, LPAs should 
apply the following principles: 
 

a) if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided (through 
locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last 
resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be refused;  

b) development on land within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest, and which is likely 
to have an adverse effect on it (either individually or in combination with other developments), 
should not normally be permitted. The only exception is where the benefits of the 
development in the location proposed clearly outweigh both its likely impact on the features of 
the site that make it of special scientific interest, and any broader impacts on the national 
network of Sites of Special Scientific Interest;  

c) development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats (such as ancient 
woodland and ancient or veteran trees) should be refused, unless there are wholly 
exceptional reasons and a suitable compensation strategy exists; and 

d)  development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should be 
supported; while opportunities to improve biodiversity in and around developments should be 
integrated as part of their design, especially where this can secure measurable net gains for 
biodiversity or enhance public access to nature where this is appropriate.  

 
CSS Policy CSP4 seeks to protect, maintain and enhance the quality and quantity of the area’s 
natural assets including enhancing the areas natural habitats and biodiversity to achieve the 
outcomes and targets set out within the UK and Staffordshire Biodiversity Action Plans and 
Staffordshire Geodiversity Action Plan. Development should avoid and/or mitigate adverse impacts, 
and wherever possible, enhance the area’s natural assets, landscape character, waterways, green 
corridors and priority species and habitats. 
 
NLP Policy N3 expects development to take account of the potential effects of development proposals 
upon wildlife and geological features and avoid or minimise any adverse effects and, where 
appropriate, to seek to enhance the natural heritage. Habitats/features of nature conservation or 
geological value will be retained in situ and protected from adverse impact. Replacement 
habitats/features will be provided on at least an equivalent scale where the Council agrees that the 
loss of wildlife habitats or geological features is unavoidable. 
 
NLP Policy N8 seeks to resist development that may, directly or indirectly habitats, unless the 
applicant can demonstrate that the need for the development clearly outweighs the need to safeguard 
the habitat. Where development affecting such habitats can be approved, appropriate measures will 
be required to minimise damage, to provide for appropriate habitat restoration and/or re-creation to 
compensate for any loss. 
 
LNP Policy NE1 supports new development that complements the landscape setting and character of 
the area, preserves or enhances and does not cause significant harm or degradation to the intrinsic 
rural character and ecological and environmental features of the area. 
 
A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) that accompanies the application identifies that the trees on 
site and within the onsite woodland are deemed to offer suitability for roosting bats, with several 
mature trees having bat roost potential during the survey. It recommends that trees identified as 
having high or moderate roosting potential should be subject to an aerial bat survey. In addition, it 
recommends that all trees to be removed should be subject to a ground level preliminary bat roost 
assessment prior to their removal. The applicant has subsequently provided an Aerial Bat Survey 
which concludes that the proposed development would not result in any harm or loss to bats that 
cannot be suitably mitigated through appropriate working methods.  
 
The PEA states that the habitats on site are suitable to support nesting birds with several bird species 
and one bird nest recorded during the survey. As a result, breeding bird surveys are recommended 
prior to the commencement of works. The applicant has subsequently submitted a Breeding Bird 
Survey (BBS) which recommends several mitigation measures.  
 
With regards to newts, the PEA advises that the site contains no ponds, but three ditches have been 
identified bounding the site that may provide suitable aquatic habitat for Great Crested Newts (GCN). 

Page 15



  

  

The applicant has subsequently been in correspondence with NatureSpace through the District 
Licensing Scheme which would ensure that suitable protection and mitigation is provided.  
 
With regard to habitats, the PEA identifies that the eastern portion of the site comprises an area of 
plantation wet woodland. Much of this area is waterlogged with a network of ditches bounding the 
woodland area. Mitigation measures are recommended to ensure that the area is adequately 
protected throughout construction and the operational phase of development. 
 
Chorlton Moss Local Wildlife Site (LWS) is sited approximately 195m to the east to the application site 
and is described as a “Raised peat bog that is rapidly drying out, which now contains coniferous and 
broad-leaved woodland”. Staffordshire Wildlife Trust (SWT) has requested additional information, 
namely Hydrology Surveys, to enable the impacts on the Chorlton Moss LWS to be fully determined.  
 
The scheme has been revised to omit development from areas of peat to the eastern portion of the 
site thus minimising any impact of the development on peat. The drainage scheme for the site has 
also been amended and a Catchment Assessment has been provided. The further comments of SWT 
are awaited and will be provided to Members in an update but further to informal discussions, it is 
anticipated that their comments will be positive.  
 
While the requirement to provide 10% BNG does not apply to this application as it was submitted prior 
to the relevant regulations coming into effect, the scheme would provide 10% gain. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
Criterion f) of Paragraph 131 of the NPPF states that development should create places that are safe, 
with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.  
 
Paragraph 187 of the NPPF advises that, planning policies and decisions should contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment by “...preventing new and existing development from 
contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable 
levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, 
help to improve local environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into account 
relevant information such as river basin management plans 
 
Paragraph 198 states that planning policies and decisions should also ensure that new development 
is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of 
pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of 
the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development.  
 
Paragraph 199 states that planning policies and decisions should sustain and contribute towards 
compliance with relevant limit values or national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the 
presence of Air Quality Management Areas and Clean Air Zones, and the cumulative impacts from 
individual sites in local areas.  
 
An Air Quality Assessment submitted with the application concludes that the development would not 
have a significant impact upon local air quality either during the construction phase or operational 
phase of the development.  
 
A Noise Assessment that accompanies the application acknowledges that the dominant noise source 
would be road traffic noise from the A53 and recommends mitigation including recommendations for 
glazing and ventilation to ensure that internal noise levels to habitable rooms directly overlooking the 
A53 can be achieved. Such measures can be appropriately secured by condition.  
 
The Environmental Health Officer agrees with the comments of the accompanying reports and raises 
no objections to the application subject to conditions. 
 
Space around Dwellings Supplementary Planning Guidance provides guidance on privacy, daylight 
standards and environmental considerations. 
 

Page 16



  

  

With respect to the interrelationship of the proposed dwellings with the existing neighbouring 
properties, sufficient separation distances between properties would be provided in accordance with 
the Council’s guidance. All of the new properties would have acceptable levels of outlook and garden 
area.  
 
Bin servicing to properties located on the shared private driveways would be supported by use of 
shared bin collection point areas along these driveway routes which would minimise bin drag 
distances for both residents and operatives. 
 
Therefore subject to conditions, it is considered that the proposed development would not result in 
adverse impacts to residential amenity.  
 
Flood Risk and Drainage 
 
NPPF Paragraph 181 outlines that when determining any planning applications, local planning 
authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications 
should be supported by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. Development should only be allowed in 
areas at risk of flooding where, in the light of this assessment (and the sequential and exception tests, 
as applicable) it can be demonstrated that:  
 

a) within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood risk, unless 
there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location;  

b) the development is appropriately flood resistant and resilient such that, in the event of a flood, 
it could be quickly brought back into use without significant refurbishment;  

c) it incorporates sustainable drainage systems, unless there is clear evidence that this would be 
inappropriate;  

d) any residual risk can be safely managed; and  
e) safe access and escape routes are included where appropriate, as part of an agreed 

emergency plan. 
 
The site is located within an area of Flood Zone 1. The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA) which has been updated on several occasions further to discussions with the 
County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) during the course of the application.  
 
The proposed development seeks to resolve on-site drainage conditions (including improving off-site 
drainage conditions) and provide an on-site attenuation area to the east of the site. In turn, 
development at the eastern part of the site has been moved away from those wetter areas. 
 
Potential sources of flooding from water bodies, the watercourse network and groundwater have been 
considered, and have been addressed within the development layout and by appropriate setting of 
levels with the introduction of the development drainage system providing additional mitigation. The 
surface water flood risk from the west has been assessed and addressed by incorporating a flow route 
around then through the development down to the watercourse network. The FRA has therefore 
concluded that built development within the site boundary can be delivered so as not to be at risk of 
flooding from any source having regard to reasonably foreseeable potential changes in flood risk. 
 
The LLFA is now satisfied that the development can be delivered so as not to be at risk of flooding 
from external sources or from within the development and therefore raises no objections subject to a 
condition requiring the submission and approval of the final detailed surface water drainage design. 
Severn Trent Water raises no objections to the proposed development. 
 
On the basis of the above, the proposals are considered to accord with development plan policy and 
the guidance set out within the NPPF. 
 
Affordable Housing  
 
Policy CSP6 of the Core Spatial Strategy states that new residential development within the urban 
area capable of accommodating 15 or more dwellings will be required to contribute towards affordable 
housing at a rate of 25% of the total dwellings to be approved.  
 

Page 17



  

  

LNP Policy HG2 requires any affordable housing to be provided within the development or nearby 
within the neighbourhood area, and not through contributions to affordable provision elsewhere. 
Development must be tenure-blind, with affordable housing mixed in with the standard market 
housing. 
 
The applicant proposes the policy compliant provision of 25% on site affordable housing. This would 
be in the form of 10 3-bed semi-detached dwellings, split between 6 social rent and 4 intermediate 
ownership.  
 
The Council’s Housing Strategy Officer is satisfied with the proposed house types and tenures. 
 
Overall therefore, it is considered that the proposal would comply with the recommendations of the 
Council’s Affordable Housing SPD both in terms of location, tenure and type of housing. 
 
Planning Obligations  
 
Section 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations states that planning obligations 
should only be sought where they meet all of the following tests: 
 

 Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

 Directly related to the development; and 

 Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development  
 

CSP10 ‘Planning Obligations’ requires developers to have regard to the consequences that may arise 
from development. The policy sets out a number of areas which should be considered including 
transport, infrastructure, affordable housing, education and community facilities, open spaces, sports 
and recreation facilities and environmental improvements and mitigation.  
 
The following financial contributions have been requested: 
  

 Staffordshire County Council as the Education Authority has requested a sum of £303,072.00 
for school places  

 Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Clinical Commissioning Group has requested a sum of 
£35,863 towards local health infrastructure  

 The Council’s Landscape Development Section has requested a contribution of £223,160.00 
towards off-site Public Open Space 

 
These are all considered to meet the tests identified in the NPPF and are compliant with Section 122 
of the CIL Regulations.  
 
Planning Balance 
 
As stated above, it is considered that the test in paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF has to be applied and 
an assessment of whether any adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the polices of the Framework taken 
as a whole is required. 
 
The provision of 40 houses on the site would make a substantial contribution towards the Borough’s 
housing land supply, particularly in the context of a development plan that is not up to date in terms of 
housing need and where a suitable supply of housing cannot be demonstrated. This benefit must 
therefore be attributed significant weight.  
 
The site would also contribute towards the provision of affordable housing within the Borough which 
again, must be afforded significant weight.  
 
On the basis that the development would provide 10% BNG notwithstanding that it is not a mandatory 
requirement of this application, the biodiversity gains are considered to be a further benefit of the 
scheme. 
 

Page 18



  

  

Turning to the harms of the development. It is accepted that occupants of the proposed development 
would still be reliant on the use of the private car to access higher order services and facilities, and 
this must be afforded moderate weight. There is also the loss of BMVAL, however, given the limited 
amount of land involved, only limited weight is attached to the loss on this occasion. There would also 
be some local impact to the character and appearance of the area.  
 
The aforementioned harms are acknowledged, however it is considered that the benefits of the 
scheme, most notably the contribution to local market and affordable housing needs are substantial 
benefits of the scheme and these harms, are not sufficient to significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the identified harms of the scheme. On this basis planning permission should be granted provided the 
required contributions are obtained to address infrastructure requirements and appropriate conditions 
are imposed, as recommended. 
 
Reducing Inequalities  
 
The Equality Act 2010 says public authorities must comply with the public sector equality duty in 
addition to the duty not to discriminate.  The public sector equality duty requires public authorities to 
consider or think about how their policies or decisions affect people who are protected under the 
Equality Act.  If a public authority hasn’t properly considered its public sector equality duty it can be 
challenged in the courts. 
 
The duty aims to make sure public authorities think about things like discrimination and the needs of 
people who are disadvantaged or suffer inequality, when they make decisions. 
 
People are protected under the Act if they have protected characteristics.  The characteristics that are 
protected in relation to the public sector equality duty are: 
 

 Age 

 Disability 

 Gender reassignment 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Race 

 Religion or belief 

 Sex 

 Sexual orientation 
 
When public authorities carry out their functions the Equality Act says they must have due regard or 
think about the need to: 
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t 

 Foster or encourage good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t 

 
The development will not have a differential impact on those with protected characteristics.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



  

  

APPENDIX 
 
Policies and proposals in the approved development plan relevant to this decision:-  
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Core Spatial Strategy (CSS) 2006-2026 
  
Policy SP1: Spatial Principles of Targeted Regeneration 
Policy SP3: Spatial Principles of Movement and Access 
Policy ASP6: Rural Area Spatial Policy 
Policy CSP1: Design Quality 
Policy CSP3: Sustainability and Climate Change 
Policy CSP4:  Natural Assets 
Policy CSP5: Open Space/Sport/Recreation 
Policy CSP6: Affordable Housing 
Policy CSP10: Planning Obligations 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Local Plan (NLP) 2011 
 
Policy H1:  Residential Development: Sustainable Location and Protection of the Countryside. 
Policy C4: Open Space in New Housing Areas. 
Policy N3: Development and Nature Conservation – Protection and Enhancement Measures. 
Policy N4: Development and Nature Conservation – Use of Local Species. 
Policy N8: Protection of Key Habitats. 
Policy N10: New Woodland Considerations 
Policy N12: Development and the Protection of Trees. 
Policy N13:  Felling and Pruning of Trees. 
Policy N14:  Protection of Landscape Features of Major Importance to Flora and Fauna. 
Policy N17: Landscape Character - General Considerations. 
Policy N21: Areas of Landscape Restoration 
Policy IM1: Provision of Essential Supporting Infrastructure and Community Facilities. 
 
Chapel and Hill Chorlton, Maer and Aston and Whitmore Neighbourhood Development Plan 
 
Policy HG1: New Housing 
Policy HG2: Housing Mix 
Policy HG3: Local Play, Sports and Recreational Facilities 
Policy NE1: Natural Environment 
Policy N2: Sustainable Drainage 
Policy COM1: New Community Facilities 
Policy COM3: Developer Contributions 
Policy DC1: Local Heritage 
Policy DC2: Sustainable Design 
Policy DC3: Public Realm and Car Parking 
Policy DC4: Connectivity and Spaces 
Policy DC6: Housing Standards 
 
Other Material Considerations include: 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2024) 
 
Planning Practice Guidance (as updated) 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010) as amended and related statutory guidance 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
 
Developer Contributions SPD (September 2007) 
 
Affordable Housing SPD (2009) 
 

Page 20

https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/SpatialStrategy/Core%20Strategy%20Final%20Version%20-%2028th%20October.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/Newcastle%20Local%20Plan%202011.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/all-services/planning/planning-policy/neighbourhood-planning/chapel-and-hill-chorlton-maer-and-aston
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/all-services/planning/planning-policy/newcastle-under-lymes-local-development
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/all-services/planning/planning-policy/newcastle-under-lymes-local-development-framework/affordable


  

  

Space Around Dwellings SPG (SAD) (July 2004) 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Urban Design Guidance Supplementary Planning 
Document (2010) 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Open Space Strategy – adopted March 2017 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
There is no relevant planning history for the site. 
 
Views of Consultees 
 
The Highway Authority has no objections subject to conditions regarding provision of visibility 
splays, parking areas, secure cycle parking, completion of access to each individual plot, retention of 
garages for parking and submission of drainage details for driveways.  
 
Staffordshire County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has no objections subject to the 
approval of the final detailed surface water drainage design. 
 
Cadent Gas has no objections. 
 
Staffordshire County Council as Education Authority states that there are projected to be an 
insufficient number of school places in the local area to mitigate the impact of this development at 
both primary and secondary phases of education. A primary school education contribution has been 
calculated as £149,184.00 and a secondary school education contribution has been calculated as 
£153,888.00. The total requested contribution is £303,072.00. 
 
The Environmental Health Division raises no objections subject to conditions relating to land 
contamination, a Construction Environmental Management Plan and a noise attenuation scheme.   
 
The Landscape Development Section has no objections in principle to the development. A Section 
106 contribution of £5,579.00 per dwelling would be required at a total cost of £223,160.00. 
 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care Board have no objections subject to a financial 
contribution of £35,863 towards supporting the future adaptation/expansion of either the Madeley 
Practice (including branch) and/or Ashley Surgery in alignment with strategic estates planning for the 
PCN as appropriate.  
 
Severn Trent Water raises no objections to the drainage proposals.  
 
Staffordshire Police are generally positive regarding the proposals but make a number of 
observations and recommendations in relation to boundary treatments, parking arrangements and 
fenestration arrangements.  
 
Staffordshire Wildlife Trust request the submission of hydrology surveys, evidence and justification 
of why the development is exceptional to the loss of irreplaceable habitat, a Biodiversity Net Gain 
Assessment and further information on Great Crested Newt surveys.  
 
Natural England has no objections stating that the proposed development will not have significant 
adverse impacts on statutorily protected nature conservation sites or landscapes. 
 
The Housing Strategy Officer confirms that the number of affordable units is acceptable but 
requests that the tenure mix is changed to reflect the policy position of 6 social rented and 4 shared 
ownership. 
 
Maer and Aston Parish Council objects on the following grounds: 
 

 It is very disappointing that the Chapel & Hill Chorlton, Maer & Aston and Whitmore 
Neighbourhood Development Plan has been stated as being out of date. 

Page 21

https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/NonLocal/Space%20About%20Dwellings%20SPG.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/DevelopmentPlan/5217%20Stoke%20Interactive%20web%2020-12-10.pdf
https://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/sites/default/files/IMCE/Planning/Planning_Policy/DevelopmentPlan/5217%20Stoke%20Interactive%20web%2020-12-10.pdf
http://moderngov.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/documents/s22542/Newcastle-under-Lyme%20Open%20Space%20Strategy%20Final.pdf


  

  

 This application is speculative, unsustainable, unwanted, contravenes the NDP and lies 
outside the village envelope.  

 Concerned about the additional strain on already pressured resources such as the part-time 
GP surgery, schools and reduced bus service. 

 Traffic impact on the A53, Woodside and Sandy Lane. 

 The provision of basic services such as water, sewerage etc are also at capacity.  
 
Whitmore Parish Council objects on the following grounds: 
 

 It is contrary to the NDP, as well as to the Baldwins Gate Design Statement prepared by 

 AECOM consultants for the Neighbourhood Development Plan.  

 It would create an unsustainable development in an unsustainable location. Baldwin’s Gate is 
not a key rural service centre and lacks the infrastructure and community facilities to support 
the level of housing and population growth that the development would entail. 

 It would cause considerable and significant environmental harm. 

 It is contrary to national policy and the policies of the statutory development plan. 
 
Chapel and Hill Chorlton Parish Council objects on the following grounds: 
 

 It is contrary to the NDP, as well as to the Baldwins Gate Design Statement prepared by 

 AECOM consultants for the Neighbourhood Development Plan.  

 It would create an unsustainable development in an unsustainable location. Baldwin’s Gate is 
not a key rural service centre and lacks the infrastructure and community facilities to support 
the level of housing and population growth that the development would entail. 

 It would cause considerable and significant environmental harm. 

 It is contrary to national policy and the policies of the statutory development plan. 

 The proposal conflicts with policies of the Draft Local Plan 2020-2040. 
 
No comments have been received from Waste Services, NatureSpace or United Utilities by the 
given deadline and as such it is assumed that they have no comments to make.  
 
Representations 
 
74 letters of objection have been received. A summary of the comments made is as follows: 
 

 Does not accord with the policies of the Neighbourhood Plan 

 Infrastructure including doctor’s surgery and school unable to cope with additional dwellings 

 Highway safety concerns given that access to the site would be situated on a narrow country 
lane which has no pedestrian access 

 Loss of trees and hedgerows 

 Impact on habitats and wildlife 

 The development would exacerbate the existing problem in the area with surface water 
drainage  

 The development would exacerbate current issues with the sewage system which is outdated 
and unreliable  

 Loss of valuable grazing land 

 Impact on character of the landscape 

 Impact on amenity during construction 

 Impact on privacy 

 No need for further houses 
 
Applicant’s/Agent’s submission 
 
All of the application documents can be viewed on the Council’s website using the following link:   
http://publicaccess.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/online-applications/PLAN/22/01105/FUL 
 
Background papers 
 
Planning files referred to 

Page 22

http://publicaccess.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/online-applications/PLAN/22/01105/FUL


  

  

Planning Documents referred to 
 
Date report prepared 
 
12 May 2025 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Huntingdon

The

128.3m

Woodside Villas

GP

Sub Sta

2

Holmecroft

Silo

5

The Croft

6

1

House

6

1

Grange

WA
LK

Tan-Y-MayPine
 Crof

t

3

Woodside

Chorlton

Ashlyn

Woodside Bungalow

Chota

122.7m

4

Track

Co ttages

3

SWANHOLME WAY

TEAL CLOSE

4

CR

3

8

Church

2

1

11

Pond

West View

MOSS LANERosedale

Kothi

6

Ne st

2

1

Crof
t

2

Drain

1

Woodside Cottages

5

5

HE
RO

N PO
OL

11

8

CLOSE

Fairway

9

Cher
ry C

otta
ge

Lodore

122.6m

Pa
th 

(um
)

Greystone

Tha
tch

Pond

3

3

FB

126.1m

House

1

5

15

Rosewood

1.22m RH

WATE
RING CLO

SE

7

12

Greenhills

4

1

Kleer Vue

House

10

121.2m

Thr
ee 

Ways

10

Orchard

1

Issues

2

8

Mallory House

DALE CLOSE

The Nook

6

1

Wood Risings

8

117.7m

Lilac Cottage

GG

DRIVE

Stone House

5

The Elms

Griffi
n H

ous
e

Fairv iew

9

2

1

Hafod

7

10a

WOODSIDE

Meadowcroft

Hunt
ers

3

Pond

Works

PA
ST

UR
E C

LO
SE

LB

2

Farm

119.1m

Baldwin's Gate

LE
A C

LO
SE

WI
LD

FO
WL

Faw
n

Silos
1

1

Haddon View

Chape l 1

2

Drain

3

Covers

7

14

9

Sinks
3

SANDYFIE
LDS

MEADOW WAY

2

Colema

Farm

LAKESIDE

Quest Co ttag e

Def

2

Path

A5
3

Baldwin's Gate

Bla ckbird s

12

FIE
LD

 C
LO

SE

379100.000000

379100.000000

379200.000000

379200.000000

379300.000000

379300.000000

379400.000000

379400.000000

379500.000000

379500.000000

339
600

.00
00

00

339
600

.00
00

00

339
700

.00
00

00

339
700

.00
00

00

339
800

.00
00

00

339
800

.00
00

00

339
900

.00
00

00

339
900

.00
00

00

340
000

.00
00

00

340
000

.00
00

00

340
100

.00
00

00

340
100

.00
00

00

This map is reproduced from the Ordnance Survey material
with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown copyright and may  lead to civil proceedings.
Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council - AC0000849941

22/01105/FUL
Land To East Of 
Woodside
Baldwins Gate

Newcastle Borough Council 1:3,000¯
Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

LAND AND GARAGES, BRIERYHURST ROAD, KIDSGROVE 
MR SIMON JONES                                                         24/00915/FUL 
 

Part retrospective planning permission is sought for the installation of shipping containers for storage 
with boundary fencing and a pergola at land and garages at Brieryhurst Road, Kidsgrove. 
 
The application site is located within the urban area of the Borough, as identified by the Local 
Development Proposal Framework Map. 
 
The application was deferred at the Planning Committee meeting on 22 April in order to obtain further 
details on the pergola, drainage, footpaths and access and external lighting. 
 
The 8-week period for the determination of this application expired on 28 February, but an 
extension of time has been agreed to 27 May. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
PERMIT subject to conditions relating to the following matters: - 
 

 Approved plans 

 Approved materials 

 Consent limited specifically to that applied for 

 Limitation of hours of access to containers  

 No outside storage 

 Installation of signage controlling the traffic  

 Limitations on delivery of containers to the site  

 
Reason for recommendations 
 
Given the limited views of the site and the substantial boundary fencing, the impact on the character 
and appearance of the area is considered acceptable. Subject to the imposition of conditions, on 
balance, it is not considered that objections could be sustained on the grounds of impact on residential 
amenity or highway safety.  

 
Statement as to how the Local Planning Authority has worked in a positive and proactive manner 
in dealing with this application   

Amended plans and additional details were requested to address concerns and these were 
subsequently submitted. The proposal is now considered to be a sustainable form of development that 
complies with the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
KEY ISSUES 
 
Part retrospective planning permission is sought for the installation of shipping containers for storage 
with boundary fencing and a pergola at land and garages at Brieryhurst Road, Kidsgrove. 
 
The application site is located within the urban area of the Borough, as identified by the Local 
Development Proposal Framework Map. 
 
The application was deferred at the Planning Committee meeting on 22 April to enable Officers to obtain 
further details on the pergola, drainage, footpaths and access and external lighting. 
 
Therefore, the key issues in the determination of this application are; 
 

1. Impact of the development on the character and appearance of the area 
2. Impact upon neighbouring occupiers in terms of amenity 
3. Impact on highway safety 
4. Other matters 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

 
Impact of the development on the character and appearance of the area 
 
Paragraph 131 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) states that good design is 
a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps 
make development acceptable to communities. 
 
Paragraph 135 of the framework lists 6 criteria, a) – f) with which planning policies and decisions should 
accord and details, amongst other things, that developments should be visually attractive and 
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape 
setting while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change. 
 
Policy CSP1 of the Core Strategy requires that the design of the development is respectful to the 
character of the area. 
 
The application is partly retrospective as much of the groundwork is complete, 3 shipping containers 
are on site, and the fencing and pergola is complete. It is proposed to locate a total of 12 shipping 
containers on the site which was previously occupied by 12 garages serving the residential properties 
surrounding it.  
 
The site is bounded by a timber fence which is 2.5m at its highest, although some sections are lower 
as agreed between the applicant and the adjoining neighbours. There is also security fencing and a 
security gate separating the site from the access to the highway, and the public right of way. The gate 
is 1.8m high. 
 
The shipping containers are constructed from corrugated steel sheets with a typical flat roof 
construction. They have the approximate overall dimensions of 2.6m in height, 2.5m in width, and 6m 
in depth. The 12 shipping containers detailed in the plans would be arranged in a row of 5, and a row 
of 7, set against the northern boundaries of the site. 
 
The pergola stands in the eastern corner of the site. It is constructed of timber, with a pitched roof 
covered in a synthetic membrane, which has solar panels affixed to its slopes. At the previous meeting 
of the Planning Committee, further to representations made to the meeting by a neighbouring resident, 
Members queried whether the dimensions of the pergola as shown on the submitted plans were 
reflective of the pergola that has been erected. The applicant has subsequently submitted amended 
plans.  
 
The pergola measures 6m in width, 5.75m in depth, and 3.5m in height to the ridge of its roof. 
 
Shipping containers are by their very nature temporary structures and therefore their appearance 
cannot be said to be of a high design quality. That said, given their relatively limited scale and the 
screening afforded by the substantial boundary fencing, the impact on the character and appearance 
of the area would not be significant. It is not considered that they would be any more harmful than the 
garages which preceded them. The overall siting and scale of the structures, both the shipping 
containers and the pergola, are considered acceptable. 
 
To conclude, given the limited views of the site and the substantial boundary fencing, on balance, it is 
not considered that an objection could be sustained on the grounds of harm to the character and 
appearance of the area.  
 
Impact on residential amenity  
 
Paragraph 135 of the NPPF lists a set of core land-use planning principles that should underpin 
decision-taking, one of which states that planning should always seek to secure high quality design and 
a high standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings. 
 
SPG (Space Around Dwellings) provides guidance on privacy, daylight standards and environmental 
considerations. 
 

Page 28



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

The nature of the business would be that of private domestic storage as the applicant intends to rent 
the containers privately to local people, who will have exclusive access to the land via the security gate.  
 
Several objections have been received from residents concerned about the effects of the development 
upon their amenity, and concerns that this development could be used as a springboard to other kinds 
of development on the site. 
 
The Environmental Health Division (EHD) initially objected to the proposed development, concerned 
that since the proposed use class extends to both storage and distribution, such a commercial use 
could expand in the future to form a distribution hub.  
 
Discussions have taken place between your Officers and the applicant and it is considered that a 
number of conditions can be imposed to ensure that the impact on residential amenity would be limited. 
Importantly, the permission would be solely for the specific domestic storage rental business described 
by the applicant. It would not be possible for the use to be extended or varied without a further planning 
permission. In addition, a limit on the hours during which the containers may be accessed will limit any 
disturbance to neighbouring residents and a condition is recommended prohibiting storage outside of 
the containers. 
 
At the previous meeting of the Planning Committee, queries were raised regarding the exterior lighting 
proposed by the applicant. Officers had recommended a condition requiring the submission and 
approval of any lighting but the applicant has now provided details indicating that there would be 6 
exterior lights, all of which would be solar powered, controlled by sensors and angled to face away from 
the neighbouring properties. The comments of Environmental Health are awaited and will be reported 
to Members in a supplementary report.  
 
On the basis of the above conditions, the EHD raises no objections, and it is considered that the 
proposal complies with the guidance set out in the NPPF. 
 
Impact on highway safety 
 
Paragraph 116 states that development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if 
there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative on the road 
network, following mitigation, would be severe, taking into account all reasonable future scenarios. 
 
Policy T16 of the Local Plan asserts that development which provides significantly less parking than the 
maximum specified levels will not be permitted if this would create or aggravate a local on street or 
parking problem. 
 
The applicant has indicated that once delivered onto the site, the shipping containers would remain in-
situ, would be used for domestic storage only, and vehicle movement is expected for delivery and 
collection of stored items only. 
 
The site was previously occupied by domestic garages and access is still provided to rear parking for 
some properties. The vehicular access to the site is from Brieryhurst Road and is only capable of 
accommodating single vehicle movements. 
 
The Highway Authority (HA) initially raised concerns regarding the proposed use on the grounds that a 
commercial operation is likely to represent an increase in vehicle movements to the site and this, along 
with the need for the delivery of the containers by HGV, would represent an intensification of a 
substandard access both in vehicle numbers and size.  
 
Additional information has been provided by the applicant and revised comments have been received 
from the HA raising concerns regarding vehicle manoeuvrability, access from the highway and the 
enforceability of conditions. 
 
It is clear from a visit to the site that there is no issue regarding vehicle manoeuvrability. The site area 
is substantial, and the boundary fencing and gates do not impede movements. Given that the number 
of containers would equal the number of garages previously on the site, it is not considered that there 
would be any intensification of the use of the access. The applicant has agreed to install signage to 

Page 29



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

help to control the traffic, giving incoming vehicles the right of way. This would be controlled via a 
condition and a further condition is recommended requiring deliveries of containers to be carried out in 
accordance with certain stipulations.   
 
Your Officers are satisfied that these conditions can be enforced and comparing the proposed use to 
the previous use of the site for garages, on balance, it is not considered that an objection could be 
sustained on the grounds of highway safety. 
 
Other matters 
 
Concerns have been raised regarding impact of the development on drainage, and consideration of the 
application was deferred at the previous meeting of the Planning Committee to enable details to be 
sought. The submission of drainage details is not a requirement for applications of this nature and can 
only be required for applications for major development or those within an identified flood risk area 
which this application is not. Notwithstanding this, the applicant has agreed to provide details and 
therefore an update will be given to Members once received.  
 
Queries have been raised regarding the potential impact of the development on public rights of way and 
access to the rear of properties. The County Council as Public Rights of Way Authority has confirmed 
that the definitive map shows that one Public Footpath (No. 232 Kidsgrove Parish) runs along the 
access track to the site. Use of the footpath would not be affected by the proposed development, but 
the County Council has advised that any works to the footpath should be discussed with them.  
 
The issue of access to the rear of properties is a civil matter and not material to the determination of 
the planning application.     

  
Reducing Inequalities  
 
The Equality Act 2010 says public authorities must comply with the public sector equality duty in addition 
to the duty not to discriminate.  The public sector equality duty requires public authorities to 
consider or think about how their policies or decisions affect people who are protected under the 
Equality Act.  If a public authority hasn’t properly considered its public sector equality duty it can be 
challenged in the courts. 
 
The duty aims to make sure public authorities think about things like discrimination and the needs of 
people who are disadvantaged or suffer inequality, when they make decisions. People are protected 
under the Act if they have protected characteristics.  The characteristics that are protected in relation 
to the public sector equality duty are: 
 

 Age 

 Disability 

 Gender reassignment 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Race 

 Religion or belief 

 Sex 

 Sexual orientation 
 
When public authorities carry out their functions the Equality Act says they must have due regard or 
think about the need to: 
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who don’t 

 Foster or encourage good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t 
 

Page 30



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

With regard to this proposal it is considered that it will not have a differential impact on those with 
protected characteristics. 
 
  

Page 31



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

APPENDIX  

Policies and proposals in the Development Plan relevant to this decision: 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Core Spatial Strategy 2006-2026 (CSS) 
 
Policy SP1: Spatial Principles of Targeted Regeneration 
Policy ASP5: Newcastle and Kidsgrove Urban Neighbourhoods Area Spatial Policy 
Policy CSP1:  Design Quality 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme Local Plan 2011 (NLP) 
 
Policy T16: Development – General Parking Requirements 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
Relevant National Policy Guidance: 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2024) 
Planning Practice Guidance (updated 2019) 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
Newcastle-under-Lyme and Stoke-on-Trent Urban Design Guidance Supplementary Planning 
Document (2010) 
 
Relevant Planning History 
 
None relevant. 
 
Views of Consultees 
 
The Environmental Health Division has no objections subject to conditions regarding hours of use 
and external lighting.  
 
The Highway Authority has queried access rights and the historical use of the site and has raised 
concerns regarding vehicle manoeuvrability, access from the highway and the enforceability of 
conditions.  
 
Staffordshire County Council as Public Rights of Way Authority states that the possibility of the 
existence of a currently unrecognised public right of way makes it advisable that the applicant seek 
legal advice regarding any visible route affecting the land, or the apparent exercise of a right of way by 
members of the public. Any works to the surface of the footpath require discussions with the County 
Council Rights of Way Team prior to any works commencing.  
 
No comments have been received from the Mining Remediation Authority or Kidsgrove Town 
Council and given that the period for comments has ended it must be assume that they have no 
comments to make.  
 
Representations 
 
25 (twenty-five) letters have been received from members of the public. 14 are in support of the proposal 
for the following reasons: 
 

 Site brought back into usage. 

 Improved visual appearance of the area. 

 Would provide secure storage facilities to residents. 

 Would deter anti-social behaviour. Land is more secure, and safe. 

 Land was untidy/ neglected. Overgrown trees cut back. No more fly tipping. Land is cleaner. 
Access to daylight improved. 

Page 32



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED  

 New fencing is an improvement, provides residents privacy. 

 The containers if coloured would blend in with the surroundings. 
 
11 object to the proposal on the following grounds: 
 

 The application is retrospective, and works are ongoing. 

 Ownership of the land and matters relating to its sale. 

 Not a suitable location for a commercial business, not in keeping with the residential setting/ 
character of the area. 

 Negative visual impact. 

 Concerns over noise. 

 Restricting access to a public right of way. 

 Wooden roofed structure is not present in the submitted plans. Structure is large. 

 Groundworks carried out in rushed manner without consideration for residents. Alterations to 
the ground level. 

 Containers appear unstable. Supported by logs. 

 No previous issues around security or anti-social behaviour. 

 Boundary fences are high. 

 Knock-on parking and highways and pedestrian safety issues. 

 Concerns around what precisely will be stored, and by who. 

 Hours of operation. Whether this would cause noise at unsociable hours. 

 Works have caused flooding/ drainage issues for neighbouring properties. 

 Removal of well-established trees and hedgerows. 

 The burial of waste. 

 Impact on ecology and wildlife. 

 Restricting access to daylight. 
 
Applicant/agent’s submission 
 
All of the application documents can be viewed on the Council’s website using the following link. 
 
https://publicaccess.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/online-applications/PLAN/24/00915/FUL 
 
Background Papers 
 
Planning File referred to 
Development Plan referred to 
 
Date report prepared  
 
8 May 2025 

Page 33

https://publicaccess.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/online-applications/PLAN/24/00915/FUL


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

 
LAND AT DODDLESPOOL, BETLEY reference 17/00186/207C2 
 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on the progress of the works 
being undertaken at this site following the planning application for the retention and 
completion of a partially constructed agricultural track, approved under planning permission 
21/00286/FUL. 
 

 

 RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the information be received. 
 

 
Latest Information 
 
As previously reported, works to the track are largely complete and the landowner now needs 
to carry out the approved landscaping works.  
 
Your officers are progressing the appropriate enforcement action against the landowner to 
ensure that the landscaping works, as required by condition 4 of planning permission 
21/00286/FUL, are carried out in accordance with the approved plans at the earliest 
opportunity.  
 
 
Date Report Prepared – 8 May 2025 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

 
Planning Committee site visit dates for 2025/26 
 
It has been the practice of the Committee to annually agree a programme of dates 
upon which Planning Committee site visits will be held, should such visits be agreed 
to be necessary at a meeting of the Committee.  
 
The likely dates of Planning Committee meetings, to which Development 
Management items are likely to be brought, are known. It is recommended that the 
Committee should now agree to a programme of dates upon which the Planning 
Committee visits will be held during the 2025/26 municipal year.  Members are 
reminded that the policy of the Committee is that in the event of a site visit being 
held, only members who have attended the site visit may then take part in the 
discussion and determination of the application which has been the subject of the site 
visit. 
 

Date of Planning Committee 
at which decision to hold a 
site visit is made 

Date of site visit  Time of site 
visit 

Tuesday 22 April 2025 Thursday 15 May 2025 6.15pm 

Tuesday 20 May 2025 Thursday 12 June 2025 6.15pm 

Tuesday 17 June 2025 Thursday 10 July 2025 6.15pm 

Tuesday 15 July 2025 Thursday 7 August 2025 6.15pm 

Tuesday 12 August 2025 Thursday 4 September 2025 6.15pm 

Tuesday 9 September 2025 Thursday 2 October 2025 6.15pm 

Thursday 7 October 2025 Saturday 1 November 2025 9.15am 

Tuesday 4 November 2025 Saturday 29 November 2025 9.15am 

Tuesday 2 December 2025 Saturday 20 December 2025 9.15am 

Tuesday 6 January 2026 Saturday 31 January 2025 9.15am 

Tuesday 3 February 2026 Saturday 28 February 2026 9.15am 

Tuesday 3 March 2026 Saturday 28 March 2026 9.15am 

Tuesday 31 March 2026 Thursday 23 April 2026 6.15pm 

Tuesday 28 April 2026 Thursday 21 May 2026 6.15pm 

   
If any additional meetings of the Planning Committee, to which Development 
Management items are brought, being held, it will be necessary in the event of the 
meeting agreeing to defer an item for a site visit, to also agree at that meeting an 
appropriate date and time for that site visit  
                      
 
Recommendation  
 
That the above list of dates and times for possible Planning Committee site 
visits for 2025/26 be agreed 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
	4 APPLICATION FOR MAJOR DEVELOPMENT - LAND TO EAST OF WOODSIDE, BALDWIN'S GATE.  JONES HOMES (NORTH WEST) LIMITED AND RENEW LAND. 22/01105/FUL
	22.01105.FUL Land To East Of Woodside

	5 APPLICATION FOR MINOR DEVELOPMENT - LAND AND GARAGES, BRIERYHURST ROAD, KIDSGROVE. MR SIMON JONES. 24/00915/FUL
	24.915.FUL - Land and Garages at Brieryhurst Road Kidsgrove

	6 LAND AT DODDLESPOOL, BETLEY. 17/00186/207C2
	7 PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISIT DATES FOR 2025/26

